
 Valdosta-Hahira Planning and Zoning Division 
300 North Lee Street 

Post Office Box 1125 

Valdosta, Georgia 31603-1125 

(229) 259-3563 Fax (229) 259-5450 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor/Council, City of Valdosta 
  Mark Barber, City Manager 
  Tim Tanner, City Attorney 
  Teresa Bolden, City Clerk  
 

FROM:  Matt Martin, Planning and Zoning Administrator 
 

RE:  Rezoning request by Ashley Skipper       File # VA-2022-01 
 

DATE:  March  1,  2022  
 
Ms. Ashley Skipper is requesting to Rezone 0.45 acres from Residential Professional (R-P) to Office Professional 
(O-P).  The subject property is located at 2317 Bemiss Road, which is at the SE corner of Bemiss Road and 
Randolph Street.  The property contains an existing professional office building (2,023-sf) and both front/rear 
parking lots with a total of 9 parking spaces.  There are no proposed changes to the building or the site, except 
for some minor interior remodeling.  The applicant is requesting the O-P zoning in order to make the property 
eligible for a proposed Personal Services Shop, and other possible uses such as a yoga studio and an “esthetics” 
training academy.  The applicant’s proposed Personal Services Shop would require a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) approval in O-P zoning and this would be reviewed under its own application at a later date --– if this 
Rezoning request is approved. 
 
The subject property is located within a Neighborhood Activity Center (NAC) Character Area on the Future 
Development Map of the Comprehensive Plan which allows the possibility of O-P zoning.  
 
The subject property is part of the “low intensity” stretch of the Bemiss Road corridor between the more intensive 
commercial nodes of the Castle Park shopping center and the Northside Drive intersection areas.  This portion 
of the corridor is characterized by mostly professional offices and multi-family development, and is reflected o 
the maps by the NAC Character Area.  Most all of the properties in the portion of the corridor are zoned R-P, 
which allows both the professional offices and high-density residential uses.  None of the properties in this 
corridor are currently zoned O-P.  Therefore, this particular Rezoning request gives the impression of 
“spot zoning” which is often contrary to good land use policy and gives us PAUSE when considering it.  Staff 
was initially opposed to this request because of the spot-zoning nature and it introducing a new zoning 
classification to the surrounding zoning. 
 
However, in considering the overall nature and history of the Bemiss Road corridor and the overlapping 
similarities of R-P and O-P zoning, staff is now viewing the request more positively.  The only significant 
differences between these two zoning districts is that R-P zoning allows multi-family development and O-P does 
not, and that O-P zoning allows a limited few more uses than R-P --- such as Banks, which R-P does not.  O-P 
zoning also adds a few uses with a CUP approval, such as a commercial-sized daycare center, pharmacy, and 
the more intensive kind of Personal Services Shops (which the applicant is ultimately proposing).  Therefore, 
even the introduction of a lot of O-P zoning to this corridor would still not have very much effect on its low-key 
non-commercial nature.   And to take the thought process even further, it should be remembered that Bemiss 
Road is a 5-lane State highway that functions as an Arterial roadway with high traffic volumes.  In this regard, 
O-P zoning should certainly be considered interchangeable with the surrounding R-P pattern, which some could 
argue is a little bit under-zoned. 
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